
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/CDA - 3rd Tuesday/2022-04-19 CDA/2022-04-19CDA Agenda (1).docx 
4/18/2022 3:48 PM 
 

 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

 
A MEETING OF THE WATERLOO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - AGENDA 

 
Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and to the news media, that a public 
meeting will be held to consider the following: 
 
Date:  April 19, 2022 
Time:  6:00 p.m.  
Location: Municipal Building, 136 North Monroe Street (via remote phone conference for participants and public) 

  Updated 4/18/2022 4pm 
Join Zoom Meeting https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81297623350?pwd=WGZOa1MxTlBrYXh5NzRaREpDSzhZUT09 
Meeting ID: 812 9762 3350     Passcode: 805768 
Dial by phone   +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL 

 
2. MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: March 15, 2022 

 
3. UPDATES & REPORTS 

a. Non-Metro Connections Update 
b. Clerk/Treasurer Report – March 2022 
c. Financial Reports Tax Incremental Finance Districts 2, 3 & 4 and Fund 600-March 
d. Business Association Liaison Report, (contact undetermined) 
e. School District Liaison (contact undetermined)  

 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Implementing A Blight Policy, Hiring Code Compliance Services, Follow-up.  Updated Open Code 
Report.   
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 
a. New Resident Outreach – Welcome Packet 
b. Morrison Field – Park Board voted to not sell property at this time 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

a. 333 Portland Rd  
i. Archaeological Study Information Update 
ii. Current Real estate contract expires 04/20/2022 with Ben Filkouski/Madison Commercial Real 

Estate. 
b. Waterloo Business Center – Eric Cotting request to rent.   

 
7. CITIZEN INPUT, FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a. Annual Calendar  
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mike Tschanz, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer 
 
Community Development Authority: Soter, Petts, Kuhl, Weihert, Woods, O’Connell, Sharpe and School District Superintendent Brian Henning as 
non-voting School District liaison  Posted, Mailed and E-mailed: 04/14/2022  

 
Please note: it is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may attend the above meeting(s) to 
gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to 
accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s 
office at the above location. 

http://www.waterloowi.us/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81297623350?pwd=WGZOa1MxTlBrYXh5NzRaREpDSzhZUT09


Page 1 of 1  
HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/FILESHARES/DATA/COMMON/agendas_ minutes/2022/cda - 3rd tuesday/2022-03-15 cda/2022-03-15 cdaminutes.docx 
3/22/2022 4:06 PM 

WATERLOO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY -- MEETING MINUTES: March 15, 2022 
Digital audio files are archived with these written minutes additionally serving as the official record.  

 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL AND CALL TO ORDER. CDA Chair Weihert called the meeting 
to order at 6:00 p.m. Members present: Kuhl, O’Connell, and Petts.  Remote: Soter. Absent: Sharpe, 
Woods, and the non-voting member from School District and Business Association.  Others in Attendance: 
Mike Tschanz, and Everett Butzine. 

 
2. MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL: February 15,2022. MOTION: [O’Connell/Petts] to approve the minutes as 

listed and presented. VOICE VOTE: Motion carried. 
 

3. UPDATES & REPORTS.  
a. Non-Metro Connections Update given by Everett Butzine.  Muti-Family interest in Waterloo.  

Everett did a tour with prospective builders.  Working on Survey. 
b. Clerk/Treasurer Report. February Update Reviewed  
c. Financial Reports Tax Incremental Finance Districts 2, 3 & 4 and Fund 600. Noted 
d. Business Association Liaison Report.  Soter shared information on upcoming wine walk.   
e. School District Liaison. No report. 

 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Implementing A Blight Policy, Hiring Code Compliance Services.  Add Open Code 
Enforcements report to next packet.  Reviewed and Discussed.  Leave on Agenda for 
upcoming meetings. 

b. Regulation And Permit for Razing Buildings.  Motion to send to City Council for approval.  
[Kuhl/O’Connell] Voice Vote:  Motion carried.   
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 

a. New Resident Outreach.  Welcome Packet.  Take up with the new clerk  
b. Morrison Field.  Looking for additional information from Parks for April meeting.  

 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
a. 333 Portland Rd – Archaeological Study.  Reviewed information in packet and discussed with 

Butzine.  Tschanz has reached out to Kunkel to compare quotes for work.  Looking for more 
information next month.   

 
7. CITIZEN INPUT, FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. None. 

a. Annual Calendar. Noted. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT. MOTION:  [Petts/Kuhl] VOICE VOTE:  Motion carried. Time: 6:45 p.m. 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
Mike Tschanz 
DeputyClerk/Treasurer 



 

 

 

 

 

 

info@non-mc.com      205 Portland Rd. Waterloo, WI. 53594   920-203-3859 

 
April 15, 2022 
 
Community Development Authority 
136 North Monroe St. 
Waterloo, WI 53594 
 
RE: April Update 
 
 
CDA Board, 
 
I have partook in many key meetings and work over the past month, including: 

• Jefferson County Economic Development Consortium 
o Monthly JCEDC Board meeting 
o Correspond with ThriveED staff on multi-family development 

• 333 Portland Rd. 
o Developer contacts 

• Virtual Multi-family developer meetings 

• Distribute the Waterloo Community Survey 
o Flyers 
o Social media 
o Hard copies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Please let me know if there are any additional areas of focus you would like me to start on. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Everett Butzine 
Owner/Managing Member 
Non-Metro Connections 

mailto:info@non-mc.com


https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/CDA - 3rd Tuesday/Clerk Treasuer Reports/2022-04-19 CT to CDA.docx 
4/18/2022 3:16 PM 

 

City of Waterloo 
Mike Tschanz 

Treasurer/Dep Clerk                  Phone:  920.478.3025 

136 North Monroe Street Fax:       920.478.2021 

Waterloo, WI  53594  

Email: cityhall@waterloowi.us 

TO: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

FROM: TREASURER/DEPUTY CLERK MIKE TSCHANZ 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT AND WRITTEN AGENDA NOTES FOR 3/15/22 CDA MEETING 

DATE: APRIL 18,2022 

CDA PRE-MEETING REPORT 

3b. CLERK/TREASURER’S COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT 

Outstanding Staff Support Tasks  
- Community Welcoming Material – A draft webpage, assembled for review 
- Community Outreach Survey (Non-Metro Connections) 

 
Grant Tracking 

- A 2022 Lead Water Service Grant Award was submitted in January 22.   Lead grant has been awarded.  Live right now.  
Information has been sent to the 53 households that are known to have lead.     

- No 2022 use of the awarded $450,000 WisDOT Local Road Improvement Program grant for 333 Portland Road and 
Hendricks Street unless a 333 Portland Road project gains traction. 

- Completed highway aid submittals (County & WisDOT) 
o For 2024 (Minnehaha Lane & Riverside Drive) road reconstructions assistance, $17,305.69 
o For 2023 (Joint submittal with Town of Waterloo; Waterloo Road) road resurfacing & culvert repair, amount a 

function of award decision. 
 
Economic Development Plan Implementation Progress Report 

- 575 West Madison Street. The Solarium has received its liquor license and plans to hold its first event on the 1st of 
May.  

- Newark Homes have sold fourplexes and duplexes.  Closing was on the 15th of April.  

mailto:cityhall@waterloowi.us


























Report To The Plan Commission 

Open Code Enforcement Challenges
Clerk/Treasurer

1:37 PM 3/11/2022

Category Open Date

Closed 

Date Address

Responsible 

Party

Municipal 

Lead Desired Outcome Link To Ord. Notes

OPEN Neighbor complaints Jan-15 362 E. Madison St. Jeremy Uttech SAFEBUILT Property owner maintaining clean 

property; no dangerous work garage
§219-5 Safe and 

sanitary 

maintenance of 

property

Pending action (C.B. verbal) Continue to 

watch. A residential property formerly 

zoned commercial; owner has a history of 

storing scrap on site and selling items on 

lawn. Repeated combustion incidents in 

garage.  2/22/2022 Cert and regular mail 

OPEN Code compliance Jan-16 129 N Monroe St Keri Sellnow SAFEBUILT Complete 1st floor build-out to code 

per conditional use

§140-19 Violations 

and penalties
20/25/21 remains in non-compliance. 

Owner in violation C.B. 2021 QTR 1 

communication. Owner granted 

conditional use to reside on a portion of 

1st floor; has not complied with building 

code with shared commercial & 

residential floor.  2/22/2022Visual 

verification of bottom floor occupant has 

moved out.  I have not been inside to 

verify.
OPEN Code compliance Jan-16 213 West Madison 

St

Bill Hart TBD Use in compliance with zoning code §385-12 C-1 General 

Commercial District
J.Q. to address. Use changed from 

printing to warehousing, no conditional 

use granted therefore an illegal use

OPEN Neighbor complaints Jun-17 135 Jefferson St Corey Besl DPW Appropriate use of sump pump not 

creating potential pedestrian slip 

hazard

§283-8 Clear waters Scheduled for 2022 road reconstruction. 

Remedy linked to when road is redone.. 

Discharge of sump pump to curb line 

doesn't flow to storm sewer creating 

pedestrian walk hazard near elementary 

school. 2/22/2022: Not for building 

inspector?
OPEN Neighbor complaints Jun-17 136 Jefferson Street Jon &  Tara Driver DPW Appropriate use of sump pump not 

creating potential pedestrian slip 

hazard

§283-8 Clear waters Scheduled for 2022 road reconstruction. 

Remedy linked to when road is redone. 

Discharge of sump pump to curb line 

doesn't flow to storm sewer creating 

pedestrian walk hazard near elementary 

school.  2/22/2022 Not for building 

inspector?

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/BUILDING INSPECTOR/CODE COMPLIANCE/EnforcementChallenges-MasterList
1 of 3

3/11/2022 1:37 PM

http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168694
http://ecode360.com/32168694
http://ecode360.com/9840855
http://ecode360.com/9840855
http://ecode360.com/9839003
http://ecode360.com/9839003


Report To The Plan Commission 

Open Code Enforcement Challenges
Clerk/Treasurer

1:37 PM 3/11/2022

OPEN Property Maintenance Jun-17 275 S. Jackson St Tired Iron Buyer LLC SAFEBUILT Property owner investment in 

warehouse repairs after sale of 

property from City to property owners 

and no blight

§219-5 Safe and 

sanitary maintenance 

of property

10/20/21 inspection & verified violations, 

10/21/21 sent letter certified to owner. 

Waiting on cert mail receipt to start 

countdown for reinspection for 

compliance 02/22/2022: all exterior is 

compliant.  Building is NOT compliant at 

this time.  Verbal with owner as to razing 

west half of building this year?
OPEN Property maintenance Sep-19 1085 Jaystone Terr KSA Waterloo LLC; 

Ben Waterloo LLCLS 

DR

SAFEBUILT Resident complaint: entry threshold 

prevents wheel chairs and dryer vent 

may be fire hazarded; 9/3 Routed to 

Chris B to inspect

§ 219-5 Safe and 

sanitary maintenance 

of property

C.B. has made contact.  No reply from 

owner.  02/22/2022 no follow up

OPEN Property Maintenance  May-20 208 PORTLAND RD GORDON D YELK & 

DEBRA A YELK 

SAFEBUILT Remedy collapses garage. No blighting 

conditions 

§ 219-5 Safe and 

sanitary maintenance 

of property

10/25/21 Reinspected and confirmed 

violations, 10/1 sent certified letter; 

10/21 cert. letter received, will reinspect 

in 30 days 2/22/2022: all exterior is 

compliant.  Building is NOT compliant at 

this time.  Verbal with owner as to razing 
OPEN Property Maintenance  Jun-20 261 S MONROE ST ANDREW V 

GRUNEWALD

SAFEBUILT No blighting conditions § 219-5 Safe and 

sanitary maintenance 

of property

10/20/21 reinspected & verified 

violations, 10/21/21 letter sent certified 

to owner. Waiting on cert. mail receipt to 

start the 30 days after receipt

OPEN Property Maintenance  Sep-21 590 Knowlton St Property owner SAFEBUILT (1) Structural damage to front rear of 

building needs correcting; (2) Garbage 

around dumpsters requires cleanup

219-5(B)(3) and 219-

5B(7)(b) Safe & 

Sanitary 

Maintenance of 

Property 

Notice sent to Waterloo Apartment LLC 

9/30 with CC to PD, CT & Donnie Rook 

with 30 days notice 2/22/2022verbal 

compliant by tenant who complained 

that all site violations were in 

compliance.  Have not verified OPEN Property Maintenance  Oct-21 408 S Jackson St Property owner SAFEBUILT ? Unspecified non-compliance. Item on 

Building Inspectors list for fall follow-up

OPEN Property Maintenance  Oct-21 435 W Polk St Property owner SAFEBUILT ? Unspecified non-compliance. Item on 

Building Inspectors list for fall follow-up

OPEN Property Maintenance  Sep-21 590 Knowlton St 

#204
Waterloo 

Apartments LLC

SAFEBUILT Properly maintained exterior property 

areas, foundation, floor & roof
Muni Code 219--

5b(3) and 219-

5b(7)(b)

CB letter to property owner 9/30/2021

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/BUILDING INSPECTOR/CODE COMPLIANCE/EnforcementChallenges-MasterList
2 of 3

3/11/2022 1:37 PM

http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
http://ecode360.com/32168789
https://ecode360.com/32168789
https://ecode360.com/32168789
https://ecode360.com/32168789


Report To The Plan Commission 

Open Code Enforcement Challenges
Clerk/Treasurer

1:37 PM 3/11/2022

OPEN Property Maintenance  Oct-21 237 Boorman St Property owner SAFEBUILT Removal of blight Storage of unlicensed 

recreational vehicle 

and weed ordinance

Unspecified non-compliance. Item on 

Building Inspectors list for fall follow-up 

2/22/2022not verified or have inspected 

year to date.  No inspection

OPEN Property Maintenance  Dec-21 469 East Madison 

Street

Property owner SAFEBUILT Removal of blight Blight complaint from neighbor routed to 

Police Department and Building 

Inspector. 2/22/2022certified mail sent 

2/10/22 and signed for.  Have inspection 

scheduled on 3/4 to gain access to rear 

and verify violations.

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/BUILDING INSPECTOR/CODE COMPLIANCE/EnforcementChallenges-MasterList
3 of 3

3/11/2022 1:37 PM













 

Archaeological Research Laboratory Center 
Cultural Resource Management 

      
      

  Sabin Hall, Rm 290 
PO Box 413 
Milwaukee, WI 
53201-0413 
414-229-3078 
www.uwm.edu 
www.uwm.edu/archaeology-
laboratory/ 

 March 11, 2022 
 

City of Waterloo 
c/o Everett Butzine 
Owner/Managing Member 
NMC 
info@non-mc.com 
920-203-3859 

 

 
RE:  333 Portland Ave. 

DNR Permit Issue 
Wis. Stats. §157.70 Burial Site Issue 
City of Waterloo 
UWM-CRM 2022-0237 

 
Dear Mr. Butzine,  
 
The Cultural Resource Management program (Archaeological Research Laboratory Center) at the 
University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee (UWM) is pleased to offer a scope of work and estimated cost to 
conduct cultural resource investigations for the above referenced project. 
 
The proposed project consists of an approximate 0.7 acre development project.  
 
Authority 
The proposed project will require permitting from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, as 
well as permission to disturb from the Wisconsin Historical Society, necessitating compliance with Wis. 
Stats §44.40 and §157.70. The Wisconsin Historical Society has identified one previously recorded 
archaeological and burial site as coincident: 47JE0098/BJE-0162 Waterloo Mounds. Archaeological 
survey of the site has been requested. 
 
 
Scope of Services 
 
Archaeological Investigations  
The archaeological study will consist of archives and literature research and field investigations. The 
archival research will identify all previously reported archaeological sites both within the area of potential 
effect (i.e. all areas of proposed ground disturbing activities) and within a one mile radius of the area of 
potential effect (APE). The archival research will also document locales within the APE that have already 
been subjected to archaeological survey. Field investigations will consist of intensive Phase I 



2022-0237 333 Portland Ave March 11, 2022 Page 2 

 

archaeological survey of the APE using visual inspection and/or shovel probe testing to assess whether 
evidence of the site is physically present within the project area. 
 
The Wisconsin Historical Society has reviewed the project and identified one previously identified 
archaeological/burial site as coincident: 47JE0098/BJE-0162 Waterloo Mounds. 
 
 
Reporting  
UWM-CRM will request permission to conduct subsurface testing within the boundaries of the burial 
site. 
 
The results of the archaeological investigations will be documented in the WisDNR Archaeological 
Survey Field Report form and submitted to the WisDNR and the Wisconsin Historical Society.  
 
The scope assumes no significant archaeological materials are encountered and does not include 
evaluation studies for archaeological sites.   
 
Costs 
The cost for the work is a lump sum of $1,800.00.  
 
Please note that the cost assumes that no significant archaeological materials will be encountered 
during the work. Note: Archaeological survey requires that the ground be snow and frost-free.  
 
The official institution name used in contracts, grants, and other official agreements is: The Board of 
Regents of the University of Wisconsin System on behalf of the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee. If 
awarded, we respectfully request the ability to negotiate the terms and conditions from the sponsor. Please 
note that as an agency of the State of Wisconsin and an academic institution the following conditions are 
required: 
 
1. We are self-insured under secs. 895.46, 893.82 and 20.505(2)(k) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 
2. We are not permitted, by law, to indemnify or defend any sponsor. 
3. We require the right to publish or use information, data, writings, or materials resulting from research 

for educational and research purposes.  
   
If you would like a copy of our standard research agreement to review our language in more detail, please 
feel free to visit UWM Standard Terms and Conditions. 
 
 
If there are questions or concerns regarding the scope of work, or to further discuss the project, please do 
not hesitate to contact me at (414) 251-8566 or at jlpicard@uwm.edu. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

https://uwm.edu/officeofresearch/uwm_crc_sra_template/


2022-0237 333 Portland Ave March 11, 2022 Page 3 

 

Jennifer L. Picard 
Principal Investigator 







Waterloo Yoga 

 

Eric Cotting has been a devoted yoga practitioner for 41 years. There are several yogic 
disciplines. Eric chose Iyengar Yoga, founded by the well-known yogi B.K.S. Iyengar. 
Iyengar Yoga uses specific postures and poses that focus on training and developing the 
deeper muscles next to the skeleton, which is very beneficial for skeletal and joint health. 
Simple equipment is used to help practitioners achieve and maintain these poses. 

Eric attended the Ventura Yoga Studio in 1991. He received teacher’s training in Iyengar 
Yoga and joined the studio’s teaching staff. He taught yoga there for 9 years, until 
relocating to Waterloo.  

Eric is passionate about serving humanity. He chose Firefighting/EMS and offering yoga 
instruction as the forms his service takes. Eric served in the Fairbanks AK Fire/EMS, and 
some years later served and continues to serve in Waterloo Fire/EMS for 16 years and 
counting.  

Eric founded Waterloo Yoga in 2008. His goal was making yoga available to the 
community rather making a profit from it. Eric’s financial goal for Waterloo Yoga is just to 
break even. Fees for participants are structured accordingly. A single class is $5 or a 
series of ten classes (which can be used anytime or date) can be bought for $40.  
Waterloo Fire/EMS members get a 50% discount. Waterloo Yoga expenses include the 
facility rental and equipment purchase, cleaning and maintenance.  

Waterloo Yoga was taught at The Mode for a facility fee of 50% of the income. After The 
Mode was sold, the classes were moved to the training area at the Waterloo Fire 
Department for no rental fee. Eric is now looking for a new venue in Waterloo with more 
available floor space. He wants to keep facility fees as low as possible so the rates can 
stay low. 

Waterloo Yoga classes are taught mornings and evenings, around Eric’s work schedule. 
Classes are taught MWF, from 6:15 am to 7:15 am and TR, from 6:30-7:30 pm. The 

classes require enough open space on the floor to accommodate teacher and students, 
some clear wall space, and (hopefully) a small secure place to store equipment. The 
equipment fits in a 2’x4’x6’ shelf and a 2’x2’ box.   

Please see the attached picture of Eric Cotting with Waterloo Yoga equipment. 



 



Preferred meeting night: 3'd Tuesday of month at 6:00 pm

JANUARY

- evaluate CDA Progress Measures
- finalize pr¡or year Annual Report

FEBRUARY

- notify Mayor of member reappointment interest
- align/modify CDA Progress Measures as needed
- subm¡t Annual Report to City Council

MARCH

- not¡fy Mayor of member reappointment interest
- Push to closeout incomplete prior year items

APRIL

- Mayoral appointments
- Push to closeout incomplete prior year items

MAY
- CDA election of Chair and Vice Chair
- evaluate CDA Progress Measures

JUNE

- start future year budget submittal
- review of tax increment finance district progress

JULY

- review of tax increment finance district progress
- future year budget planning
- align CDA Progress Measures with budget planning
- reaffirm or jett¡son all active programs and projects

AUGUST

- future year budget submittal to Finance, lnsurance & Personnel Committee, including tax incremental finance funds

SEPTEMBER

- evaluate CDA Progress Measures

OCTOBER

- !trength, weaknesses opportunities & !hreats (SWOT) exercise

NOVEMBER

- commun¡ty outreach

DECEMBER

- community outreach
- review staff draft, Annual Report to City
- update calendar

Council

Waterloo Community Development Authority -- Annual Calendar

Page 1 of 1

HTTPS/MATERL0OWI.SHAREP0INT.COM/SITES/FILESHARËS/ÐATA/C0MMON/COMMUNITY development audìorlty/annual calendar/community development authority annual
calendar.docx
211112021 2:59 PM


